UNITED STATESOF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

In the M atter of

SOFTSEARCH HOLDINGS, INC,,

acorporation, and File No. 951-0130
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GEOQUEST INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.,)
acorporation. )

)
)

AGREEMENT CONTAINING CONSENT ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), having initiated an investigation of the
proposed merger of Dwight'€€nergydata, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary @oftSearch
Holdings, Inc. (‘'SoftSearch"), and Petroleum Information Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary ofGeoQuest International Holdings, Inc. (GeoQuest"), and it now appearing that
SoftSearch andGeoQuest, hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "proposed Respondents,” and
Tobin Data Graphics LLC {TDG"), a party necessary to effectuate the relief contemplated by this
agreement, are willing to enter into an agreement containing an order to divest certain assets and
providing for other relief:

IT ISHEREBY AGREEDby and between the proposed Respondents and TDG, by their
duly authorized officers, and counsel for the Commission, that:

1 Proposed RespondentSoftSearch Holdings, Inc., is a corporation organized,
existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Texas, with its
office and principal place of business located at Suite A, 1202 Estates Drive, Abilene,
Texas 79602. Itswholly owned subsidiary, Dwightinergydata, Inc., is a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its office and principal place of business located at 16B8man Drive,
Richardson, Texas 75081. Dwight'&€nergydata, Inc., holds a 37 percent interest in
Graphics Information Technologies, Inc. ("GITI"), a corporation organized, existing, and
doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware. GITI has no
operating assets, but since the formation off obin Data Graphics LLC in June 1994, GITI
has held a 50% percent interest iT obin Data Graphics LLC.



2. Proposed RespondentGeoQuest International Holdings, Inc., is a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware with its office and principal place of business located at 5388estheimer Drive,
Houston, Texas 77056. GeoQuest is a holding company and has no operating assets. Its
principal subsidiary is Petroleum Information Corporation, a corporation organized,
existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with
its office and principal place of business located at 5338 estheimer Drive, Houston,

Texas 77056.

3. Tobin Data GraphicsLLC isaTexas limited liability company, with its office and
principal place of business located at 114 Camp Street, San Antonio, Texas 78204.

4, Proposed Respondents and TDG admit all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the
draft of complaint here attached.

5. Proposed Respondents and TDG waive:
a any further procedural steps;

b. the requirement that the Commission's decision contain a statement of
findings of fact and conclusions of law;

C. all rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to challenge or contest the
validity of the Order entered pursuant to this Agreement; and

d. any claim under the Equal Accessto Justice Act.

6. This agreement shall not become part of the public record of the proceeding unless
and until it is accepted by the Commission. If this agreement is accepted by the
Commission it, together with the draft of complaint contemplated thereby, will be placed
on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days and information in respect thereto
publicly released. The Commission thereafter may either withdraw its acceptance of this
agreement and so notify the proposed Respondents and TDG, in which event it will take
such action as it may consider appropriate, or issue and serve its complaint (in such form
as the circumstances may require) and decision, in disposition of the proceeding.

7. This agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by the proposed Respondents or TDG that the law has been violated as alleged
in the draft of complaint here attached, or that the facts as alleged in the draft complaint,
other than jurisdictional facts, are true.

8. This agreement contemplates that, if it is accepted by the Commission, and if such
acceptance is not subsequently withdrawn by the Commission pursuant to the provisions
of § 2.34 of the Commission's Rules, the Commission may, without further noticethe



proposed Respondents or TDG, (1) issue its complaint corresponding in form and
substance with the draft of complaint here attached and its decision containing the
following Order to divest in disposition of the proceeding and (2) make information public
with respect thereto. When so entered, the Order to divest shall have the same force and
effect and may be altered, modified or set aside in the same manner and within the same
time provided by statute for other Orders. The Order shall become final upon service.
Delivery by the U.S. Postal Service of the complaint and decision containing the agreed-to
Order to the proposed Respondents' counsel at the address as stated in this agreement

shall constitute service. Proposed Respondents and TDG waive any right they may have
to any other manner of service. The complaint may be used in construing the terms of the
Order, and no agreement, understanding, representation, or interpretation not contained in
the Order or the agreement may be used to vary or contradict the terms of the Order.

9. Proposed Respondents and TDG have read the proposed complaint and Order
contemplated hereby. They understand that once the Order has been issued, they will be
required to file one or more compliance reports showing that they have fully complied
with the Order. Proposed Respondents and TDG further understand that they may be
liable for civil penaltiesin the amount provided by law for each violation of the Order after
it becomes final.

10. Respondents and the Commission agree that, in the event the Commission takes
any action concerning the extent, validity or significance of any intellectual property right
claimed by the Respondents, the acceptance of this Agreement, or Commission approval
of any agreement under which the Specified Data is divested, shall have no impact
whatsoever on any adjudication or any action of the Copyright Office of the Library of
Congress or the United States Patent and Trademark Office of the Department of
Commerce concerning thdRespondents claim of any intellectual property right.



Order
l.
IT 1SORDEREDthat, as used in this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

A. "Dwight's" meansSoftSearch Holdings, Inc., its directors, officers, employees,
agents and representatives, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and
affiliates controlled bySoftSearch Holdings, Inc., and the respective directors, officers,
employees, agents and representatives, successors and assigns of each.

B. "PIC" meansGeoQuest International Holdings, Inc., its directors, officers,
employees, agents and representatives, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions,
groups and affiliates controlled byseoQuest International Holdings, Inc., and the
respective directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives, successors and
assigns of each.

C. "TDG" meansTobin Data Graphics LLC, its directors, officers, employees, agents
and representatives, successors, and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, groups and
affiliates controlled byl obin Data Graphics LLC, and the respective directors, officers,
employees, agents, and representatives, successors and assigns of each.

D. "Graphics Information Technologies, Inc.,” is a corporation organized, existing,
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware with its office
and principal place of business located at 1560 Broadway, Suite 903, Denver, Colorado
80202.

E. “HPDI, L.L.C.;” isaTexas limited liability company with its office and
principal place of business located at 9300 Research Boulevard,
Suite 306, Austin, Texas  78759-6520.
F. "Respondents’ means Dwight's and PIC.

G. The“Merger" means the proposed combination of the businesses of Dwight's
Energydata, Inc., and Petroleum Information Corporation.

H. "Commission" means the Federal Trade Commission.
l. "Relevant Product” means Well Data and Production Data.
J. "Well Data" means information in any media concerning the location, permitting,

drilling activity or completion of any oil or gas well located in the United States, including
U.S. territorial waters, and related information.



K. "Well Header Data" means the following information regarding an oil, gas, or
other well: API Number, Surface and Bottom Hole L ocations (Township, Range, Section,
Area, Block, Section, Survey, Abstract, and Footage Calls), Lease Name and ID, Well
Number, Permit Number, Operator Name, Total Depth, Completion or Plugging Date,
Final Status, Class, Field Name, Elevation, anBwights ID.

L. "Production Data" means information in any media concerning the identity,
location and volume of fluids, including, but not limited to, oil, water, and natural gas,
produced from or injected into any oil or natural gas well or leases located in the United
States, including U.S. territorial waters, and related information.

M. "Acquirer" means the person or persons approved by the Commission to acquire
the Specified Data.

N. "Divest" means to grant a perpetual, world-wide license to the Acquirer, with the
right, subject to the terms of this Order, to use, combine with other information,
reproduce, market, assign or otherwise transfer, andublicense the Specified Data.

O. "Specified Data"' means digital well data and production data that are included in
one or more of the Schedule A Products and the Well Header Data received by Dwight's
from TDG under the Data Exchange and Sales Representative Agreement entered into on
June 1, 1995.

P. "Schedule A Products' means those products listed in Schedule A of this Order.
Q. "Shared employee" means any person whose salary or other compensation for

services rendered is paid, directly or indirectly, by both TDG and Petroleum
InformationDwight's.

R. "Petroleum InformationDwight's' means the entity that is created as a result of
the Merger.
S. "Royalty-based compensation” means payment to a vendor orlicensor based,

directly or indirectly, upon the revenue generated by the sale of the vendor'slazensor's
well data or production data.



IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat:

A.  Following completion of the Merger, Respondents shall divest the Specified Data,
absolutely and in good faith, at no minimum price, consistent with the provisions of this
Order, either to (1) HPDI, L.L.C., pursuant to, and in accordance with the time frame set
out in paragraph 2(a) of, the License Agreement for Specified Data entered into between
Dwight'sand HPDI, L.L.C., dated September 18, 1996 (Exhibit A hereto); or (2) another
person that receives the prior approval of the Commission, and only in a manner that
receives the prior approval of the Commissiorrovided, howevey if, at the time the
Commission determines to make this Order final, the Commission notifies Respondents
that HPDI, L.L.C., is not an acceptable acquirer, then Respondents shall not divest the
Specified Datato HPDI, L.L.C. Upon expiration of the divestiture period described in
paragraph I11.B.4. of the Order, Respondents shall have no further obligation to divest.

B. The purpose of the divestiture of the Specified Datais to ensure the continued use
of the Specified Data in the same type of business in which the Specified Data is used at
the time of the Merger, and to remedy any lessening of competition resulting from the
Merger as alleged in the Commission's complaint.

C. After the Specified Data has been divested, Respondents shall not exercise any
right they may have, whether at common law, in equity, or in bankruptcy or reorganization
(including through obtaining any equity interest in a reorganized debtor) or otherwise, to
terminate the license granted under this Order or to seek to have such license terminated,
or to require, or seek to require, the Acquirer or its successor or assignee to return the
Specified Data.

1.
IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat:

A. If Respondents have not divested, absolutely and in good faith and with the
Commission's prior approval, the Specified Data, the Commission may, on the date this
Order becomes final, or at any time thereafter, appoint either Ben Gurkett, 11, of

Burkett Consulting, Dallas, Texas, Burkett”) or someone else to act as trustee to divest
the Specified Data. In the event that the Commission or the Attorney General brings an
action pursuant to§ 5(I) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.G§ 45(1), or any
other statute enforced by the Commission, Respondents shall consent to the appointment
of atrustee in such action. Neither the appointment of atrustee nor a decision not to
appoint atrustee under this paragraph shall preclude the Commission or the Attorney
General from seeking civil penalties or any other relief available to it, including a court-
appointed trustee pursuant to§ 5(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act, or any other
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statute enforced by the Commission, for any failure by the Respondents to comply with
this order.

B. If atrustee is appointed by the Commission or a court pursuant to paragraph I11.A.
of this Order, Respondents shall consent to the following terms and conditions regarding
the trustee's powers, duties, authority, and responsibilities:

1. The Commission either (1) shall seledBurkett to be the trustee
under the terms of a trustee agreement as set out in Exhibit B hereto; or (2)
shall select another trustee subject to the consent of Respondents, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The trustee, if nBurkett,

shall be a person with experience and expertise in acquisitions and
divestitures. If Respondents have not opposed, in writing, including the
reasons for opposing, the selection of any proposed trustee, other than
Burkett, within ten (10) days after notice by the staff of the Commission to
Respondents of the identity of any proposed trustee, Respondents shall be
deemed to have consented to the selection of the proposed trustee.

2. Subject to the prior approval of the Commission, the trustee shall
have the exclusive power and authority to divest the Specified Data.

3. Within ten (10) days after appointment of the trustee, Respondents
shall execute a trust agreement that, subject to the prior approval of the
Commission, and in the case of a court-appointed trustee, of the court,
transfers to the trustee all rights and powers necessary to permit the trustee
to effect the divestiture required by this Order. Such agreement may
contain provisions requiring the trustee to protect against unauthorized
disclosure or use of the Specified Data before the Specified Datais
divested.

4. The trustee shall have twelve (12) months from the date the
Commission approves the trust agreement described in Paragraph 111.B.3.
to accomplish the divestiture, which shall be subject to the prior approval
of the Commission. If, however, at the end of the twelve (12) month
period, the trustee has submitted a plan of divestiture or believes that
divestiture can be achieved within areasonable time, the divestiture period
may be extended by the Commission, or, in the case of a court-appointed
trustee, by the Court; provided, however, the Commission may extend this
period only two (2) times for up to twelve (12) months each time.

5. The trustee shall have full and complete access to the Specified
Data and to the personnel, books, records and facilities related to the
Specified Data or to any other relevant information, as the trustee may
reasonably request. The trustee may require that a repository be



established to allow for examination of the Specified Data by prospective
Acquirers. Respondents shall develop such financial or other information as
such trustee may reasonably request and shall cooperate with the trustee.
Respondents shall take no action to interfere with or impede the trustee's
accomplishment of the divestiture. Any delaysin divestiture caused by
Respondents shall extend the time for divestiture under this Paragraph in an
amount equal to the delay, as determined by the Commission or, for a
court-appointed trustee, by the court.

6. The trustee shall make reasonable efforts to negotiate the most favorable
price and terms available in each contract that is submitted to the Commission,
subject to Respondents' absolute and unconditional obligation to divest at no
minimum price. The divestiture shall be made in the manner and to the Acquirer as
set out in Paragraphs 1. and I11. of this Order, provided, however, if the trustee
receives bona fide offers from more than one acquiring entity, the trustee shall
submit all such bids to the Commission, and if the Commission determines to
approve more than one such acquiring entity either for the whole data set or for
any of the same parts of the data set comprising the Specified Data, the trustee
shall divest to the acquiring entity or entities selected by Respondents from among
those approved by the Commission. The Commission may approve divestiture of
parts of the Specified Data to different acquiring entities, but in no event will there
be more than one Acquirer for either the whole data set comprising the Specified
Data, or any of the same parts of the data set comprising the Specified Data.

7. The trustee shall serve, without bond or other security, at the cost
and expense of Respondents, on such reasonable and customary terms and
conditions as the Commission or a court may set. The trustee shall have
the authority to employ, at the cost and expense of Respondents, and at
reasonable fees, such consultants, accountants, attorneys, investment
bankers, business brokers, appraisers, and other representatives and
assistants as are reasonably necessary to carry out the trustee's duties and
responsibilities. The trustee shall account for athonies derived from the
divestiture and all expensesincurred. After approval by the Commission
and in the case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court, of the account of
the trustee, including fees for his or her services, all remainingpnies shall
be paid at the direction of the Respondents, and the trustee's power shall be
terminated. The trustee's compensation shall be based at least in significant
part on a commission arrangement contingent on the trustee's divesting the
Specified Data.

8. Respondents shall indemnify the trustee and hold the trustee
harmless against any losses, claims, damages, liabilities, or expenses arising
out of, or in connection with, the performance of the trustee's duties,
including all reasonable fees of counsel and other expensesincurred in



connection with the preparation for, or defense of any claim, whether or
not resulting in any liability, except to the extent that such liabilities, losses,
damages, claims, or expenses result from misfeasance, gross negligence,
willful or wanton acts, or bad faith by the trustee.

9. If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act diligently, a substitute
trustee shall be appointed in the same manner as provided in Paragraph
[11.A. of this Order.

10. Consistent with the terms of this Order, the Commission or,
in the case of a court-appointed trustee, the court, may on its own
initiative or at the request of the trustee issue such additional orders
or directions as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate to
accomplish the divestiture required by this Order. Notwithstanding
Paragraph 1V.G. herein, such additional orders or directions may
provide for, among other things, giving the Acquirer the right to
use the record layouts specified in Paragraph 1V.A. when
sublicensing the Specified Data, with provisions that insure against
confusion of the origin of the data.

11.  Thetrustee shall have no obligation or authority to operate or maintain the
Specified Data.

12.  Thetrustee shall report in writing to Respondents and the
Commission every sixty (60) days concerning the trustee's efforts to
accomplish divestiture.

V.
IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat:

A. The Specified Data shall be delivered to the Acquirer in machine-readable, usable
form in the record layoutsin Annex 1 of this Order for well data, Annex 2A of this Order
for production data, Annex 2B of this Order for the Texas oil test (W10) file; Annex 2C of
this Order for the Louisiana oil test (DM 1R) file; and Annex 3 of this Order for Petroleum
Data System (PDS) data, which support the Dwight's Petroleum Reservoirs CD-ROM.
Respondents shall provide the Acquirer the Specified Datain the computer code set in
which the records are maintained or in industry standard (8-bit) ASCII, at the Acquirer's
option.

B. Respondents shall provide the Acquirer with all existing technical system
documentation and user documentation relating to the Specified Data. Such
documentation includes, but is not limited to, a description of all data elementsin Dwight's
Well Data System, a description of the datafile in Dwight's A-File (unpacked) file; a
description of the test file in the Texas oil test (W10) file; a description of the test filein
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the Louisiana oil test (DM 1R) file; Dwight's "Data Item Manual;" and the keys to all codes
used by Dwight's, whether maintained in machine-readable format, hard copy, or
microfilm.

C. Respondents shall provide Acquirer with data that is current as of the date of the
divestiture for all data elements that were included in any Schedule A Product on the date
on which the Commission accepts this Order for comment, to the extent that data exist on
any Dwight's computer records.

D. Respondents shall make no claim to ownership, title, or interest in any product
derived from the Specified Data by the Acquirer.

E. Respondents are not required to provide the Acquirer the right tesublicense well
identifier codes, field and reservoir codes, and operator codes, to the extent that such
codes are unique to Dwight's. However, Respondents shall provide Acquirer with the
right to provide its licensees with a cross-reference to enable a licensee to convert from
Dwight's codes to the Acquirer's codes.

F. Respondents are not required to provide Acquirer (a) any latitude or longitude
data that Respondents possess solely by reason of the Data Exchange and Sales
Representative Agreement entered into between Dwight's and TDG on June 1, 1995; (b)
any software, or any rights to use osublicense any software; or (c) any calculation of
estimated future recoverable oil or gas reserves.

G. Respondents are not required to provide Acquirer the right to use the record
layouts specified in Paragraph 1V.A. whesublicensing the Specified Data.

H. The Acquirer shall not transfer osublicense any rights to any Specified Datain
any manner that would have the effect of creating additional independent vendors for the
whole or any part of the Specified Data. Notwithstanding the above, Acquirer shall have
the right to, among other things: assign or otherwise transfer all of its rights to and interest
in all or part of the Specified Data to another person; create distributorships or appoint
sales agents for licensing of the Specified Data; or license the Specified Data to geological
libraries for use by their members on a read-and-print-only basis. In addition, Acquirer
shall have the right to enter into data exchange agreements wherein the recipient of the
Acquirer's data has the right to market andublicense the Specified Data, provided that

the recipient under such data exchange agreement shall not grant alicense or other right to
Specified Data, or otherwise knowingly make the Specified Data available, to any person
unless such person has agreed not to transfer osublicense the Specified Data and not to
make the Specified Data publicly available. Respondents shall not enforce any restriction
on the Acquirersright to transfer orsublicense the Specified Data in the event that a
court or an administrative agency, in a proceeding involving the respondents, issues a
final order from which no appeal has been or can be taken, determining that all or a
portion of the Specified Datais not protected intellectual property. Within 30 days of the
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issuance of such an order, Respondents shall notify the Commission and the Acquirer that
restrictions on the transfer orsublicense contained in the License Agreement will not be
enforced with respect to the portion of the Specified Data that was determined to be
unprotected intellectual property.

l. Upon reasonabl e notice to Respondents from the Acquirer, Respondents shall
provide such assistance to the Acquirer asis reasonably necessary to ensure that the
purpose of the divestiture of the Specified Datais accomplished. Such assistance shall
include reasonabl e consultation with knowledgeable employees of Respondents for a
period of time sufficient to ensure that the Acquirer's personnel are appropriately trained
in the sources and processing of the data contained in the Specified Data. Respondents,
however, shall not be required to continue providing such assistance for more than twelve
(12) months from the date of the divestiture. Respondents may charge the Acquirer at a
rate no greater than their direct costs for providing such technical assistance. Direct costs
consist of expenses and the salary and benefits attributable to Respondents' employees
actually providing assistance, for the time required for the provision of such technical
assistance, and variable overhead, including out-of-pocket expenses.

J Respondents may take reasonable steps with reect to their employees to assure
that the confidentiality of their proprietary datais not compromised, but Respondents shall
not impose non-competition agreements that have the purpose or effect of interfering with
the ability of the Acquirer to recruit or employ Respondents employees.

K. Respondents, upon 24 hours advance notice by the Acquirer, shall provide
Acquirer, at Acquirer's expense, reasonable access to, and the right to copy, any data-
source document or data in Respondents' possession that was used to compile the
Specified Data to the extent Respondents have such data-source document or data at the
time of the request. Respondents may charge the Acquirer only for Respondents' direct
costs in providing such access or copying. Direct costs consist of the salary and benefits
attributable to Respondents' employees for the time required for the provision of such
access and copying, and variable overhead, including out-of-pocket expenses.

L. Within ten (10) days after divestiture of the Specified Data, Dwight's shall assign
to the Acquirer al of itsrights under and interest in the Data Exchange Agreement of July
1, 1993, with The Independent Oil & Gas Service, Inc. ("Independent"), which relates to
well datain Kansas. If Independent consents to such assignment, Petroleum
InformationDwight's shall promptly remove from its products all data acquired from
Independent under the Data Exchange Agreement of July 1, 1993, and all predecessor
agreements and provide the data to the Acquirer in the record layout specified in
Paragraph 1V.A. above; provided, however, that Petroleum Informatiddvight's shall be
free to negotiate a new agreement with Independent. Such new agreement may neither be
exclusive nor contain a Royalty-based compensation provision. If Independent does not
consent to such assignment, Dwight's shall promptly terminate the Data Exchange
Agreement in accordance with its terms and provide any data to which Dwight's has an
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ownership right under said Agreement to the Acquirer in the record layout specified in
Paragraph IV.A.

M. Within ten (10) days after divestiture of the Specified Data, Dwight's shall assign
to the Acquirer all of itsrights under and interest in the Joint Marketing Agreement of July
1, 1994, withMunger Oil Information Services, Inc. Munger"), which relates to well
datafor California, Oregon, Pacific Federal Offshore, Alaska, and Washington.Mtinger
consents to such assignment, Petroleum InformatioBwight's shall promptly remove from
its products all data acquired fronMunger under the Joint Marketing Agreement of July

1, 1994, and all predecessor agreements and provide the data to the Acquirer in the format
specified in Paragraph IV .A. above; provided, however, that Petroleum
InformationDwight's shall be free to negotiate a new agreement witMunger. Such new
agreement may neither be exclusive nor contain a Royalty-based compensation provision.
If Munger does not consent to such assignment, Dwight's shall promptly terminate the
Joint Marketing Agreement in accordance with its terms and provide any data to which
Dwight's has an ownership right under said Agreement to the Acquirer in the record
layout specified in Paragraph IV.A.

V.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat Respondents shall provide to the Commission staff or
a Repository designated by the Commission staff a copy of the Specified Data that was provided
to the Acquirer, a copy of all Schedule A Products as of the date on which the Commission
accepts this Order for comment, and a copy of all Dwight's CD-ROM products published and
offered for sale to customers immediately prior to the divestiture of the Specified Data.

VI.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat, for a period of ten (10) years from the date this
Order becomes final, Respondents shall not, without prior notification to the Commission, directly
or indirectly:

A. Acquire any stock, share capital, equity, or othenterest in Graphics Information
Technologies, Inc., or in any person engaged in the distribution of a Relevant Product at
any time within the two years preceding such acquisition;

B. Enter into any agreements or other arrangements with any person whose principal
business is distributing a Relevant Product, to obtain direct or indirect ownership,
management, or control of any preexisting data bases that are or were used in such
business; or

C. Acquire from any one entity cumulatively during any period of three consecutive
calendar years (a) the exclusive ownership of records containing well data covering more
than 75,000 wells in any one state except Texas, or 250,000 wells in the State of Texas or
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(b) either the exclusive right, or a non-exclusive right with a Royalty-based compensation,
to market well data covering more than 75,000 wells in any one state except Texas, or
250,000 wellsin the State of Texas. Respondents shall have the right to rely upon the
supplying entity's best estimates, at the time of the acquisition, concerning the number and
locations of the covered wells. In determining whether notification may be required by
this provision, well records that have been included in a previous notification under this
provision or under 15U.S.C. § 18a shall not be considered.

VII.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat the prior notifications required by Paragraph V1. of
this Order shall be given on the Notification and Report Form set forth in the Appendix to Part
803 of Title 16 of the Code of Federal Regulations as amended (hereinafter referred to as "the
Notification"), and shall be prepared and transmitted in accordance with the requirements of that
part, except that no filing fee will be required for any such notification, notification shall be filed
with the Secretary of the Commission, notification need not be made to the United States
Department of Justice, and notification is required only of Respondents and not of any other party
to the transaction. Respondents shall provide the Notification to the Commission at least thirty
days prior to consummating any such transaction (hereinafter referred to as the "first waiting
period"). If, within the first waiting period, representatives of the Commission make a written
request for additional information, Respondents shall not consummate the transaction until twenty
days after substantially complying with such request for additional information. Early termination
of the waiting periods in this paragraph may be requested and, where appropriate, granted by
letter from the Bureau of Competition.

Provided, however, that prior notification shall not be required by Paragraph V1. of this
Order for atransaction for which notification is required to be made, and has been made, pursuant
to Section 7A of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C§ 18a.

VIII.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat within thirty (30) days after the date this Order
becomes final and every thirty (30) days thereafter until Respondents have fully complied with the
provisions of ParagraphslI., I11., 1V., and V. of this Order, Respondents shall submit to the
Commission a verified written report setting forth in detail the manner and form in which they
intend to comply, are complying, or have complied with this Order. Respondents shall include in
their compliance reports, among other things that are required from time to time, a full description
of the efforts being made to comply with the Order.
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IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat:

A. Within ten days of receiving notification from the Commission staff that the
Specified Data has been divested to the Acquirer, TDG shall offer to the Acquirer, its
successor, assignee, agent or distributor (collectively, "Acquirer" for purposes of this
paragraph), a Sales Representative Agreement in the form of Exhibit C hereto. The terms
of any sales representative agreement between TDG and the Acquirer shall cover the same
products and be at least as favorable to the Acquirer as the terms agreed to from time to
time between TDG and Petroleum Informatio@wight's. The Sales Representative
Agreement for the Acquirer shall be non-terminable by TDG, except under the following
circumstances:

1. The breach of material terms by the Acquirer or the Acquirer'sinability to pay.
In the case of such a breach, the obligations of TDG shall resume upon cure of the
breach. In the case of receivership or voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy, or the
institution of proceedings therefor, the obligation of TDG under this Paragraph
may be suspended until the appointment of a trustee or a successor to operate the
Acquirer's business or a debtor in possession; or

2. TDG no longer maintains a Sales Representative Agreement with Petroleum
InformationDwight's and there are no other joint selling arrangements between
TDG and Petroleum Informatioridwight's for a particular product.

B. TDG shall not disclose to any officer, director, or employee of Petroleum
InformationDwight's or any Shared employee any information that TDG receives from
the Acquirer regarding (1) the Acquirer's actual or prospective customers, (2) the content
of any customer proposals or offers made by the Acquirer, or (3) the terms of any
individual customer dealings with TDG or the Acquirer.

C. Within 30 day of receiving notification from the Commission staff that the
Specified Data has been divested to the Acquirer, TDG shall submit to the Commission a
copy of the Sales Representative Agreement entered into with Petroleum
InformationDwight's and with the Acquirer. For three years after the date this Order
becomes final, TDG shall submit to the Commission any revisions or amendments to such
agreements within thirty (30) days of their execution.

X.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat, for the purpose of determining or securing
compliance with this Order, and subject to any legally recognized privilege, upon written request
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and reasonable notice, each Respondent and TDG shall permit any duly authorized representative
of the Commission:

A. Access, during office hours and in the presence of counsel, to inspect and copy all
books, ledgers, accounts, correspondence, memoranda and other records and documents
in the possession or under the control of Respondent relating to any matters contained in
this Order; and

B. Upon five (5) days notice to the appropriate Respondent, and without restraint or
interference, to interview officers, directors, or employees of the
Respondent, who may have counsel present.

XI.

IT ISFURTHER ORDEREDthat Respondents and TDG shall notify the Commission at
least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in the corporate Respondents or TDG such as
dissolution, assignment, sale resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, or the creation
or dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the corporations that may affect compliance
obligations arising out of the Order.

SIGNED this day of , 1996.

GEOQUEST INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS, INC.

Frank Lipson
JohnR. Butler, Jr. Counsel for the Federal
Chairman and Chief Trade Commission
Executive Officer
APPROVED:
SOFTSEARCH HOLDINGS, INC.
By: Phillip L.Broyles
Dr. Robert C. Ivey Assistant Director
President Bureau of Competition
George S. Cary
TOBIN DATA GRAPHICSLLC Senior Deputy Director
Bureau of Competition
By:
Donald R. Stone William JBaer
President Director

Federal Trade Commission

BUREAU OF COMPETITION
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Schedule A

|. Dwight's Production DataCD-Rom Products
West Coast Areg consisting of California, Oregon, Pacific Federal Offshore,
Alaska
Gulf Coast Area,consisting of Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama,
Florida, Federal Offshore, Coastal Counties of Texas
MidContinent Area,consisting of Arkansas, Kansas, Michigan, Oklahoma and
Texas Railroad Commission District 10.
Texas Area,consisting of all of Texas
Rocky Mountain Area,consisting of Arizona, Colorado, Montana, New Mexico,
North Dakota, South Dakota, Wyoming, Nebraska, Nevada, Utah

I1. Dwight's Discover SCOUT CD-ROM Products
Gulf Coast Area,consisting of Arkansas, Louisiana, Mississippi, Alabama,
Florida, Federal Offshore
MidContinent Area,consisting of Northern Arkansas, Michigan, Oklahoma and
Texas Railroad Commission District 10
Texas Areg consisting of all of Texas
Rocky Mountain Area,consisting of Arizona, Colorado, Montana, New Mexico,
North Dakota, South Dakota, Wyoming, Nebraska, Nevada, Utah, Idaho

[11. Dwight's Discover CD-ROM Products
Oklahoma Area,consisting of Oklahoma
Rocky Mountain Area,consisting of Arizona, Colorado, Montana, New Mexico,
North Dakota, South Dakota, Wyoming, Nebraska, Nevada, Utah, Idaho

IV.Dwight's Petroleum Reservoirs (DPR) With Operated Production CD-ROM Products
State of Alaska
State of California
Permian Basin
Texas & Southeast New Mexico
State of Oregon
Gulf Coast Area,consisting of Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Gulf of Mexico
Offshore, Louisiana, Mississippi, Texas Raillroad Commission Districts2, and 4
MidContinent Area,consisting of Arkansas, Kansas, Oklahoma, Texas Railroad
Commission District 10
Rocky Mountain Area,consisting of Arizona, Colorado, Montana, North
Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming, New Mexico

[Annexes 1-3 and Exhibits A-C -- with confidential material redacted -- are attached to paper
copies of the consent agreement, but are not currently available in electronic form.]



UNITED STATESOF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

)
In the Matter of )
)
SOFTSEARCH HOLDINGS, INC., )
a corporation, and ) FileNo. 951-0130
)
GEOQUEST INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS,INC.,)
acorporation )
)
)

ASSET MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS ASSET Maintenance Agreement (the "Agreement") is by and betwe8oftSearch
Holdings,Inc ("SoftSearch™), a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Texas, with
its principal offices located at Abilene, Texas, and the Federal Trade Commission (the
"Commission"), an independent agency of the United States Government, established under the
Federal Trade Commission Act of 1914, 15 U.S.G§ 41, et seq. (collectively, the "Parties").

PREMISES

WHEREAS SoftSearch andGeoQuest International Holdings, Inc. entered into an agreement,
dated , pursuant to whictsoftSearch’'s wholly owned subsidiary Dwight's
Energydata Inc. (‘'Dwights") andGeoQuest's wholly owned subsidiary Petroleum Information
Corporation will merge their assets (the "Acquisition"); and

WHEREAS the Commission is now investigating the Acquisition to determine whether it would
violate any of the statutes enforced by the Commission; and

WHEREAS The Commission has reason to believe that the agreement would violate Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act, and that, if consummated, would violate Section 7 of the
Clayton Act and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, statutes enforced by the
Commission; and

WHEREAS if the Commission accepts the attached Agreement Containing Consent Order
("Consent Order™), the Commission must place it on the public record for a period of at least sixty



days and may subsequently withdraw such acceptance pursuant to the provisionsso?.34 of the
Commission's Rules; and

WHEREAS the Commission is concerned that if an agreement is not reached preserving the
Specified Data (as defined in the Agreement Containing Consent Order) during the period prior to
the time that the Consent Order becomes final, divestiture of said data to an independent, viable
competitor or other effective relief might not be possible in any proceeding challenging the
legality of the Acquisition in the event that the Consent Order does not become final; and

WHEREAS the action of SoftSearch in entering into this Agreement shall in no way be
construed as an admission bysoftSearch that the Acquisition violates the statutes as alleged in the
draft complaint attached hereto; and

WHEREAS SoftSearch understands that no act or transaction contemplated by this Agreement
shall be deemed immune or exempt from the provisions of the antitrust laws or the Federal Trade
Commission Act by reason of anything contained in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the Commission's agreement that, unless it determines
to reject the Consent Order, it will not seek further relief from the Parties with respect to the
Acquisition, except that the Commission may exercise any and all rights to enforce this
Agreement and the Consent Order annexed hereto, and to seek the divestiture of such assets to be
preserved under this Agreement as may be required to maintain the level of competition that
existed prior to the Acquisition, the Parties agree as follows:

1. SoftSearch agrees to execute, and upon its issuance to be bound by, the attached
Consent Order.

2. SoftSearch agrees that from the date this Agreement is accepted by the
Commission until the earliest of the dates listed in subparagraphs (a) and (b) it will
comply with the provisions of this Agreement.

(@ the date the Consent Order becomes final; or

(b) three business days after the Commission withdraws its acceptance
of the Consent Order pursuant to the provisions of 2.34 of the
Commission's rules.

3. SoftSearch shall maintain and update the Specified Data; preserve its viability and
marketability, and prevent its destruction, removal, wasting, deterioration or
impairment of any kind.

4. If the Commission seeks in any proceeding with respect to the Acquisition to
obtain injunctive or equitable reliefSoftSearch shall not raise an objection based
upon the fact that the Commission has permitted the Acquisition to be
consummated. SoftSearch also waives all rights to contest the validity of this
Agreement.



5. For the purpose of determining or securing compliance with this Agreement,
subject to any legally recognized privilege, and upon written request with
reasonable notice toSoftSearch made to its principal officesoftSearch shall
permit any duly authorized representative of the Commission:

(@ Access during the office hours ofSoftSearch or Dwights, in the
presence of counsel, to inspect and copy all books, ledgers,
accounts, correspondence, memoranda and other records and
documents in possession or under the control oBoftSearch relating
to compliance with the Agreement; and

(b) Upon five (5) days written notice t&oftSearch or Dwights and
without restraint or interference from it, to interview officers or
employees of SoftSearch or Dwights, who may have counsel
present, regarding any such matters.

6. The Agreement shall not be binding until approved by the Commission.

Dated: Accepted for Public Comment by the Commission on December 3, 1996
Donald S. Clark, Secretary of the Commission

SOFTSEARCH HOLDINGS, INC.

By:

Dr. Robert C. Ivey
President

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

By:

Stephen Calkins
General Counsel



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

In the Matter of )
)
SOFTSEARCH HOLDINGS, INC., )
a corporation, and )
)
GEOQUEST INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS,INC., ) Docket No.
a corporation. )
)
COMPLAINT

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission"), having reason to believe that Dwight's Energydata, Inc.
(“Dwight's"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of respondent SoftSearch Holdings, Inc., a corporation subject to the jurisdiction
of the Federal Trade Commission, has entered into an agreement to merge with Petroleum Information Corporation
("PI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of respondent GeoQuest International Holdings, Inc., a corporation subject to the
jurisdiction of the Commission, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C.§ 18, and Section 5 of
the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), as amended, 15 U.S.C.§ 45, and it appearing to the Commission that a
proceeding in respect thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint, stating its charges as follows:

THE RESPONDENTS




PARAGRAPH ONE. Respondent SoftSearch Holdings, Inc., is a corporation organized, existing, and doing
business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its offices and principal place of business located
at 1202 Estates Drive, Suite A, Abilene, Texas 79602. Its wholly-owned subsidiary, Dwight'sEnergyData, Inc., is a
corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its
office and principal place of business located at 1633Firman Drive, Suite 100, Richardson, Texas 75081. Dwight's
Energydata, Inc., holds a 37 percent interest in Graphic Information Technologies, Inc.,("GITI") a corporation organized,
existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware.

PARAGRAPH TWO. Respondent GeoQuest International Holdings, Inc., is a corporation organized, existing,
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware with its office and principal place of
business located at 5333 Westheimer Drive, Houston, Texas 77056. Its principal subsidiary is Petroleum Information
Corporation, a corporation organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Delaware, with its office and principal place of business located at 5333Westheimer Drive, Houston, Texas 77056.

PARAGRAPH THREE. At all times relevant herein, each of the respondents or their predecessors, has been
and is now engaged in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, 15U.S.C§ 12, and is a
corporation whose business is in or affecting commerce, as "commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.
THE MERGER

PARAGRAPH FOUR. InJuly 1995 respondents agreed to merge the businesses of Dwight's and PI.

THE RELEVANT MARKETS

PARAGRAPH FIVE. One relevant line of commerce in which to evaluate the effects of the merger is the sale or
licensing of well data. "Well Data" means information in any media concerning the location, permitting, drilling or
completion of any oil and gas well located in the United States, and related information.

PARAGRAPH SIX. One relevant line of commerce in which to evaluate the effects of the merger is the
sale or licensing of production data. "Production Data" means information in any media concerning the locations of, and
volume of oil, gas, or water produced from any oil or gas well located in the United States, and related information.

PARAGRAPH SEVEN. One relevant section of the country in which to evaluate the effects of the merger is the
United States as a whole.

PARAGRAPH EIGHT. The relevant markets set forth in PARAGRAPHS FIVE, SIX, and SEVEN are highly
concentrated, whether measured by Herfindahl-Hirschman Indices or two-firm and four-firm concentration ratios.
Dwight's and Pl are actual competitors in the relevant markets. Dwight's and PI are the only competitive providers of



well and production data for many areas of the country. The merged Dwight's/P1 will have the largest market share in
the relevant markets.

PARAGRAPH NINE. Respondents are the only firms that have extensive, multi-state collections of historical
information on oil and gas properties. Firms lacking similar databases cannot effectively compete in the relevant
markets. Assembling a database that matches the database possessed by either respondent would be very difficult,
expensive, and time consuming. This factor makes timely and effective entry into the relevant markets difficult and
unlikely.

EFFECTS OF THE MERGER

PARAGRAPH TEN. The merger may substantially lessen competition in the relevant markets in the following
ways, among others:

(@) by eliminating direct competition between Dwight's and PI;

(b) by increasing the likelihood that respondents will unilaterally exercise market power; and

(c) by increasing the likelihood of, or facilitating, collusion or coordinated interaction;
each of which increases the likelihood that the prices of well data and production data will increase. The merger is also
likely to lead to reduced service for customers. The merger may lead to a decline in technological innovation due to loss

of rivalry in making product enhancements. The merger may further lead to a deterioration in the accuracy of the data
compiled due to loss of competition in securing and verifying data.

VIOLATIONS CHARGED

PARAGRAPH ELEVEN. The merger described in PARAGRAPH FOUR constitutes a violation of Section 5 of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45.

PARAGRAPH TWELVE. The merger described in PARAGRAPH FOUR, if consummated, would constitute a
violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C.§ 45, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15U.5.C. § 45.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Federal Trade Commission has caused this Complaint to be signed by the
Secretary and its official seal to be affixed, at Washington,D.C. this ~ day of 1996.

By the Commission.



Donald S. Clark
Secretary

SEAL:

ISSUED:



ANALYSIS TO AID PUBLIC COMMENT ON
THE PROVISIONALLY ACCEPTED CONSENT ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission ("Commission”) has accepted for public comment fromSoftSearch Holdings,
Inc. (“SoftSearch”), and GeoQuest International, Inc. (“GeoQuest”), an agreement containing consent order. This
agreement has been placed on the public record for sixty (60) days for receiving comments from interested persons.
Comments received during this period will become part of the public record. After sixty (60) days, the Commission will
review the agreement and the comments received, and will decide what additional action to take.

The proposed merger involving GeoQuest and SoftSearch may be anticompetitive. Both firms, through
Petroleum Information Corporation ("Petroleum Information") and Dwight’s EnergyData ("Dwight’s"), their respective
subsidiaries, collect and distribute certain data to the petroleum industry relating to oil and gas well drilling and
production. The proposed consent order would require the respondents to license the Dwight’s database to HPDI, L.L.C.,
("HPDI"), a Texas limited liability corporation currently engaged in the collection and distribution of similar data. HPDI
could use Dwight’s data to compete with the merged companies. Should the Commission determine, after the public
comment period, that granting a license to HPDI will not be effective in maintaining competition after the merger, the
Commission may appoint a trustee to license the data to a purchaser other than HPDI. The purpose of this analysis is to
elicit public comments on all aspects of the complaint and the proposed remedy.

Dwight’s and Petroleum Information are engaged in the business of selling petroleum data. One type of data,
known as “well data," includes a variety of geological and other types of information derived from, or related to, the
drilling of specific oil and gas wells. Another type of data, known as “production data,” deals with volumes of oil and
gas produced over time from specific wells or leases. Purchasers use this data in a variety of ways, including
evaluating potential production and reserves of geological formations and finding patterns of oil and gas production for

future exploration and development.



THE COMMISSION’S INVESTIGATION AND CONCERNS

Potential anticompetitive problems in the sale or license of this data could result from a merger of Dwight’s and
Petroleum Information. They are by far the two largest data vendors, and offer the most thorough sets of petroleum data
in the United States. The draft complaint alleges that the proposed merger would eliminate direct, ongoing competition
between the respondents in the distribution of well and production data and lead to anticompetitive increases in the
prices charged for well and production data. The proposed complaint also alleges that substitutes for the data provided
by respondents are economically infeasible, and that the proposed merger would cause customers to pay more, receive
less, or both.

Rivalry in innovation and product quality might deteriorate. The respondents compete in being the first to the
market in offering product enhancements to meet the changing needs of petroleum data users and timely delivery of
accurate data. The respondents have assembled their databases from different sources of information. The respondents
presently compete to offer the most complete and accurate information for a particularcustomer’s needs.

The respondents have asserted that there are efficiencies or cost reductions from assimilation of separate
databases into a common computer format and reduction of redundant personnel. They also assert that devoting
resources to finding and resolving discrepancies can improve the accuracy of the data whenDwight’s and Petroleum
Information report different data for the same well or lease, and that such efforts are not feasible absent the merger.
Presently, in order to ensure access to the most complete and accurate data, customers must buy bothcompanies’
products. Finally the respondents claim that many customers will save substantial resources by reducing their internal
computer support that currently services two sets of data.

Even if the respondents are correct in their analysis, the draft complaint alleges that the merger as originally
proposed presented risks of increased prices or other anticompetitive behavior. Entry by others into this business would
be unlikely to offset this behavior. The proposed complaint alleges that entry by others into this business would be
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unlikely to offset this behavior. Entry is very difficult because of the extensive nature of theDwight’s and Petroleum

Information databases. Information for pre-1970s wells, for example, would be practically impossible to duplicate.

THE PROPOSED CONSENT ORDER

The draft complaint alleges that SoftSearch and GeoQuest violated Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act by agreeing, in July 1995, to merge the businesses of Dwight’s and Petroleum Information and that the merger, if
consummated, would violate Section 7 of the Clayton Act. The draft complaint alleges relevant markets are the
provision of well data and the provision of production data in the United States. The draft complaint alleges that the
merger may substantially lessen competition by eliminating direct competition between Dwight's and Petroleum
Information; increasing the likelihood that respondents will unilaterally exercise market power; and increasing the
likelihood of, or facilitating, collusion or coordinated interaction. The draft complaint alleges that each of these effects
increases the likelihood that the prices of well data and production data will increase, and services to customers of well
data and production data will decrease.

The Agreement Containing Consent Order would, if finally issued by the Commission, settle charges alleged in
the draft Complaint.

The order accepted for public comment contains provisions that would permit the proposed merger to occur,
thus allowing customers to realize the alleged benefits described above. However, the proposed order would require the
respondents to license a set of complete data currently sold by Dwight’s to a third company, that could resell the data in
competition with the merged Petroleum Information/Dwight’s, thus preserving competition. In addition to obtaining a
license to the complete Dwight’s database, the third party would also receive the right to distribute well coordinate
information generated by Tobin Data Graphs, LLC, a firm affiliated with Dwight’s. The purpose of the proposed order is
to create a viable and competitive vendor of data now sold by the respondents.
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THE LICENSEE AND TRUSTEE PROVISIONS
OF THE PROPOSED ORDER

HPDI has been provisionally approved as the licensee under the order of Dwight’s data. The identification of a
specific licensee in the proposed consent order will allow the public to comment on the effectiveness of the proposed relief
in the context of a specific proposed licensee (Exhibit A to the proposed consent order). 1t also minimizes the delay in
restoring competition, allegedly lost as a result of the transaction and, thus, lessens the risk that the licensing provision

will fail.

HPDl is a Texas limted liability corporation organi zed on
August 24, 1994. HPDI provides limted production data to firns
engaged in gas or oil gathering and transportation. Few, if any,
current HPDI custoners use that data to assist in decisions
relating to exploration or production of oil and gas resources.

HPDI, |like Dwght'’s and PetroleumInformation, obtains its
production data from governnental agencies. HPD obtains current
production data fromfiles naintained by the states of Al aska,
Col orado, Kansas, Louisiana, New Mexi co, Ckl ahoma, O egon, South
Dakota, and Texas. It also obtains data fromthe Mneral s
Managenent Service for the Qulf Offshore. HPD converts
di sparate data formats of the various governnent agencies into a
single format and provides the data to users on w ndow based CD
ROM. HPD ’s dat abase covers only those years for which the
gover nnent agenci es have put data into a nachi ne-readabl e (as
opposed to witten on paper) format. HPDl 's Texas data, for
exanpl e, dates from1974. This nmeans that HPD | acks historical
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production data for many wells, which has inpeded HDPI ’s
expansion into serving the exploration and production segnent of
the oil and gas industry, the prinary custoner base for Dwi ght ’s
and PetroleumInformation. The |icense provided by the proposed
order would supply HPDI with this historical data
Capitol Appraisal Goup, Inc. ( “CAG"), a Texas

corporation, ows the najority of HPDI. CAG appraises oil and
gas | eases for Texas counties and ot her Texas taxing
jurisdictions. In its appraisal business, CAG uses the Texas
state oil production records and processes oil and gas data on
its conputer mainfrane. CAG supplies HPDI with office space
conput er programm ng and processing capacity, and financing.

HPDI is a recent entrant to the business of selling
petrol eumdata. HPDI has experience collecting, processing, and
di stributing production data derived fromthe conputerized
records of various state and federal governnent agencies. HPD
believes that it could integrate Dwi ght ’'s data into its current
CD-ROM products within sixty days after the effective date of a
Comm ssion order. HPD plans to update virtually all of the
Dwi ght ’s production and well data that is available from
governnental agencies. |In the future, HPDI may col | ect
additional well data directly fromoil conpanies (so-called
"scouting data"), although it does not have any experience in

collecting and distributing such scouting data.



If the Conm ssion, after review of the public coments,
determnes not to approve HPDI as the licensee, it may appoint a

trustee to divest the data to another person. The proposed order

provi des for the appoi ntnment of Ben C Burkett, 11, of Burkett
Consul ting, Dallas, Texas, as a trustee to |icense Dwi ght ’s
dat abase.

M. Burkett has for nore than fifteen years been an
i ndependent corporate finance and nerger/acquisition consultant
toclients in the oil and gas and other industries. Before
formng his consulting firm M. Burkett was a co-founder and
director of Lear Petroleum Corp. Before that tine, he was an
enpl oyee with Mesa Petrol eum Co. and Shanrock Gl and Gas Corp.

As a consultant, M. Burkett has nmanaged initial public
offerings of stock, facilitated a variety of nergers and
acqui sitions, and nmanaged the restructuring and turnaround of
conpanies in the oil and gas and chemcal industries. |In the
m d-1980s, M. Burkett advised the prior owners of Dwi ght ’s on a
financial restructuring of the conpany.

A separate agreenent with SoftSearch ("Asset Mintenance
Agreenent")requires respondents to preserve Dwi ght ’s data in the
f orm now avai | abl e. Sof t Search has therefore agreed to naintain
and update the data until the Conmm ssion accepts or rejects the

proposed order.



SCLI Cl TATI ON OF PUBLI C COMVENTS

The purpose of this analysis is to invite public comrent
concerning the consent order. The Commssion is particularly
interested in receiving comrents on the efficacy of the renedy if
t he Comm ssi on shoul d approve HPDI as the |icensee of Dwi ght ’s
dat abase and on the expression of interest by alternative
potential |icensees.

This analysis is not an official interpretation of the

agreenent and order and does not nodify their terns in any way.



